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DESCRIBE TRE PRESENT AND OHIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Church of the Ascensiocn is a Norman-styled eccleslastical

usture with Romanesque and Gothic details. The exterior is composed
¢1e1d=tone and peobllnc, witih wood shingle and stucco gables and a
stesply pitched roof of asbestos shingles. The basic floor plan is
eruci form with the nave running from west to east with a rectangular
series of additions (parish hall, etc.) extending eastward from about
the northeast corner of the church.
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Tre facade on the southside is broken by a center gable of wood
shingle with 3 stainsd-zlass windcws. A square fieldstone belfry with
cpen werk and capped by a pyram‘clai roof lies to the immediate west
and is connected to-the criginal weoeden entrance portico. The belfry
containg the mid-ninteenth century b2ll from the City of Dublin, a
steamship which had washed ashore cn the coast ¢f Cregon. The new

entrarice on the west side (1951) also has a high-pitched portice extend-

*uc from the white stucce gable. The exterior of the apse cn the east
side is semi-circular and

rnade cf fieldstone and pebbling up to the roof
lins yith wooden brackets connecting the exposed verticle beams to the
cverhnang of the rosf. The additicn on the north side is ccmposed cf
sinmilar building materizls and blends in well with the coriginal portion
of thz sturcture.

The interior cf the church features expcsed wooden rafters suppertzd

.
t
7 hamrer beamis. The expossd fieldstone foundaticn and pebbling abeve
it is also evidant. The church is also ornamented by the original Gothic
stained-zlass windcws and new pews.
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3ince its original constructicn the church has had several additicns
wilch have blended harmeniously with the original structure. Carlton
rslow added a parish hall, sunday schocl, and related rooms to the
rorthern section in 1922. The extericr and interior of this addition was
rinal church. In 1951, Winslow's scn
enlarged the rear of the building c¢n the western sicde and ieft a new
entrance which was stylistically sympathetic to the old entrance. A&
schcol building was censtructed on the property in 1952 and is not con-
anLea to the church. Various minor changes such as re-painting the

woed cn the exterior, and interior alterations to accomodate the changing
‘ liturgy have also cccurred.
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The building is presently in fair conditicn but has suffered several
cracks from recent earthguakes which the church administration intends to

cerrect. The structure lies on a well landscaped setting in a residential
nelgnborhood.
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Brnest Coxhead

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Church of the Ascension is the second Episcepal church building
and the cldest ecclesiastical structure in the ci~y of Sierra Madre.
The church was ccnstructed in 18238 con the site of the first church which
had blown down in a2 windeclorn the preceding year. The structure was
erected by the congregation under the direction of the architect, Ernest
A. Coxhead, cn land dcnated by cne of Sierra ifadre's carliest settlers,
Frances H. Hawks. Since that time, the church has ccentinucusly served
the ccmmunity of Sierra lMadre as a place of worship for local Episcopa-
liens and as an institution which has helped to guide community growth.

Arc’nitecturall.‘i, the church is one of the i‘ew
of the ecclesiastical designs ci‘ Zrnest A.
and educated in England, Coxhead o
sevtl_na firsb in Los hngeles an d iE: T to San rrancisco. lHe
established a reputaticn as the mwest impertant Socuthern Jalifornia
church designer of the late nineteenth century with sueh works as the
Churcéh of the Angels in Pasadena, St stinz Zpiscepal Church in
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4Althcugh not the most elaborate example of Coxnhead's work, the
Church o>f the Ascensicn is a substantial achievement in that Coxhea

designed it and supervised the work on a very mcdest budgzet. He had a

close working relationship with the members of the cconzrezation who
brought the building materials to the construcstion site Irom
Anita Wash and did the actual construction themselves. The finiched

product was a fine Norman-styled house of worship, emarxable structure

in wood and stone which was heavily influenced by the country churches
of Couxhead!s native England.

the udnt&

Since 1828, the original church structure has not been radically
altered. An additicn to ths western side (rear) of the tuilding in

1951 by another noted California archxtect, Carlton Winslow, Jr., extended
the 1ength cf the structure to accorodate the growing ccnzrezation. The
style, however, blends in wall with the original. Winslcw!s father had
added the parish hall and related rooms to the northern ssction of the
church in 1922 and was careful to use almost identical tuilding materials

in the interior and extericr to keep the original spirit of the church
intact.
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Today the Church of the Ascension is one of the few remaining
examples cf the ecclesisstical style cf one cf Southern Californiats

Y most accorplisned architects, Zrnest Coxnead. It is also Sierra ladrels
most important link Yo its community origins and a lacting instituticn
which has helped to guide its development.
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